
CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

CITY HALL – CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2011, 7:00 P.M. 

 

ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  Todd Erickson, John Campbell, Judy Preston, 

Mike Lies, Elsa Duford, Fred Funke, and Mayor Pat DeVries presiding.  City Manager 

Todd Crossett present.  City Attorney James Raymond absent.  Others present:  Dennis 

Duty, Jolsyn Shackelford, Gordon Zimmerman, Mike McCloud, Water & Sewer 

Superintendent Tony Porrazzo, Robin Wallace, Rory Horning, Diane Speer, Cheryl Wolfe, 

Jim Sanderson, Tamy Sanderson, Carol Daniels, Steve Morton and Peter Daniels. 

 

Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:  Commissioner Funke moved to approve the 

agenda as proposed, seconded by Commissioner Erickson.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

A.  OCTOBER 16-31 CLAIMS 

Commissioner Campbell moved to approve the consent agenda, item A, seconded by 

Commissioner Lies.  Commissioner Duford inquired about master meter training the water and 

sewer departments had purchased.  Water & Sewer Superintendent Porrazzo advised that the 

training had been provided for all the departments’ employees.  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 17, 2011:  Commissioner Lies 

moved to approve the minutes with typographical and clarification corrections.  Commissioner 

Funke seconded the motion.  Mayor DeVries noted that the batteries had gone dead 33 minutes 

before the end of the previous meeting and City Clerk Parker had not noticed until the meeting 

was over.  Commissioner Duford advised added that the date of the MVAC groundbreaking was 

July 8
th

, not July 6
th

.  She directed attention to her comments on page one and commented that 

there was information from a September 15
th

 meeting that the Commissioners did not receive, 

and she felt it was not possible to be an informed voter without the information.  She commented 

that without complete and accurate information they were voting blind and it was not a good 

idea.  She maintained that she wished to be opposed to the vote.  She commented that they were 

given the information at the meeting, and she thought it was like asking any of them to recite an 

ordinance that they hadn’t seen verbatim.  She inquired if there was an actual petition signed for 

the waiver.  City Manager Crossett advised that they had filled out the request for the waiver 

including the petition. Commissioner Duford felt the Commissioners should have that, they 

should be able to see it rather than just having it talked about.  She commented that it wasn’t 

possible to be informed without seeing the information before the meeting and her vote was void.  

She commented that she didn’t know if anyone else wanted to reconsider their vote, but she had 

to do what worked for her.  She passed out a copy of a Missoulian page where the City published 

their meetings.  She commented that the public and the Commission needed better informed in 

advance.  Mayor DeVries advised that the boards publish their meetings.  She advised that 

committees were not the same as boards.  Commissioner Duford advised that she was referring 

to the September 15
th

 meeting of the Impact Fee Review Board as it was labeled.  City Manager 



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 2 
 

Crossett and Mayor DeVries advised that it was actually a review committee.    Commissioner 

Duford commented that committees should also be open to the public.  She asked that page 9 be 

clarified were the City Manager stated that all manners of lies were being told.  City Manager 

Crossett advised that his understanding was that the approval of the minutes was the accuracy of 

what was said, not to debate why it was said.  He commented that was happy to talk about the 

matter, but it was not the purpose of the agenda item.  He advised that his statement referenced 

by Commissioner Duford was in response to inaccurate claims, though he admitted he could 

have said it better and apologized for the language.  And that is what was said at the meeting.  

Commissioner Duford commented that it was a matter of confusion and things should be clearer 

that were put in the minutes.  Commissioner Preston commented that she usually reads the 

minutes or listens to the CD, but this time she had done both and it was very confusing.  She 

commented it seemed that several significant things were left out of the written minutes, 

including the Mayor mentioning the Greater Community Foundation’s video being on a website 

and the City Manager mentioning that it costs $100 to open the doors of the golf course 

restaurant.  She commented that the City Manager had said that the restaurant financials would 

be ready for this meeting and she wondered if she needed to fill out a request form.  City 

Manager Crossett advised that he would be going over that in the City Manager Comments 

agenda item, though he could do it now if she preferred.  Commissioner Preston commented that 

she heard from the public, the minutes use verbs like “informed”, “beseeched”, and “pleaded” 

and as she was listening it did not connect with her.  She thought it was a bit dramatic.  She 

commented that following the minutes with the CD, it had been obviously edited.  She 

commented that the City Manager had said it would take a whole lot of time to transcribe 

completely, but it seemed to her that it was taking a whole lot of time to edit the minutes.  City 

Manager Crossett asked if she was accusing him of something.  Commissioner Preston 

commented that she was not accusing him of anything, she was commenting on the minutes, City 

Clerk Parker wrote the minutes and she assumed that he also looked them over.  City Manager 

Crossett advised the minutes were not edited all.  City Clerk Parker advised that the Assistant 

City Clerk had copy edited them.  Commissioner Preston asked if she was out of line.  Mayor 

DeVries advised that they did not have verbatim minutes, and it was not required.  The only way 

they would have them is if they hired a court reporter.  Commissioner Preston commented that 

Mr. Duncan had mentioned a 24,000 square foot building and that was not included and she felt 

that was significant, as well as a question from Commissioner Campbell.  She commented that 

her point was that if she were just listening to the CD or just reading she would not know that 

they were different, not that they were intentionally different, but it was hard to follow how the 

minutes were made from that meeting.  City Manager Crossett advised that the City Clerk did the 

minutes in their entirety and he did not edit them at all, and he thought the minutes were done the 

best that they could with the time that they had.  He commented that the Commission may want 

to consider adding a position for that, there was not time for the City Clerk to do their entire job 

and do every meeting minutes verbatim.  He commented that there seemed to be an accusation 

out there that they were doing weird things to the minutes, when in fact they were not.  He 

commented that he didn’t touch the minutes at all and neither had the City Attorney, who had not 

been at that meeting.  Mayor DeVries asked what corrections to the minutes if Commissioner 

Preston would like made.  Commissioner Preston responded there were none. Rory Horning 

noted that there was a typographical error on the agenda, the October 17
th

 minutes were being 

approved not October 3
rd

. Mayor DeVries agreed and thanked him.  Commissioner Duford 

directed attention to page 9 of the minutes and asked if there had been anything done about the 



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 3 
 

lease payments for B & I Holdings.  City Manager Crossett advised that he’d asked the City 

Clerk and Utility Billing Clerk to put an invoice system together.  The motion to approve the 

October 17
th

 minutes with correction carried unanimously. 

 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  City Manager Crossett advised that the golf course 

restaurant numbers through September were complete, and he would have a full analysis up to 

the closure of the restaurant in October in a report to the Commission that week.  July through 

September they were down about $250.  The previous June they had been up about $2,000, 

however this June had poor weather and they were down about $5,500 at that time.  He advised 

that opening to soon in the spring had caused losses.  The first week of October there had been a 

profitable tournament and payroll costs incurred.  He added that after they review that 

information if they liked they could make it an agenda item.   

 

Skyline was set to be paved the following day, if the weather maintained a warm enough 

temperature. 

 

The exit audit had been the previous week, and with generally good results.  The audit was late, 

less than 180 days.  Which was a slow improvement as the City had been two years behind for 

the last several.  The only finding from the FY 09-10 audit was that they recommended a CPA 

consultant or employee familiar with GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles).  There 

were a couple of glitches with payroll, but not a significant finding in the audit.  They pointed 

out the issues so that the City would not continue to have those problems.  They had discussed 

with the auditors about review of fee collections. There seemed to be some inconsistencies in the 

past system on how they were collected in answer to concerns that were expressed.  He 

commented that he would like to see them consistent on how they were applied.  There would be 

a cost associated with the investigation, and the auditors would be getting back to them with a 

proposed scope.   

 

Officer William Cleveland had been nominated by the Marine Corp for Distinguished Officer of 

the Year for Montana.  There would be a ceremony the coming Thursday at the Elks Club. 

 

Volunteer Fire Captain Ernie Butt would be retiring the upcoming Tuesday after 32 years of 

service.   

 

Commissioner Campbell inquired if the auditor wanted the City to hire a CPA to audit the 

auditors.  Mayor DeVries noted that it was a strange requirement; essentially the auditor did not 

know that hiring a CPA was worth it, but they were required to include it in the audit.  She noted 

that it worth at least inquiring about the cost and then they could decide, it was also included in 

the previous year’s audit.  Commissioner Campbell inquired if the same auditing firm would be 

looking at the fee collecting review.  Mayor DeVries advised that they had asked for a proposal 

with cost and scope of an agreed upon procedures audit.  City Manager Crossett advised that it 

would be a separate contract from the current one for annual audits.  Commissioner Campbell 

expressed that it was good for an independent person to come in that was familiar with the City, 

it would shorten the process than starting from scratch.  Mayor DeVries noted that they could 

help the City design a procedure to ensure the process was followed.  City Manager Crossett 

commented that they may help take them to a critical point, and the City could take it beyond.  



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 4 
 

He added that some were in communication and who was in charge of what had changed over 

the last couple years, there seemed to be some mistakes and some argument on how they were 

applied.  He felt they had sorted the administrative side, but they needed to be sure that was the 

case, and they needed to make some decision point on protocol and policy.  He advised that he 

was slow to assume there was any intentional wrongdoing, but an audit would show that as well.  

Commissioner Campbell inquired if they found any gaps or homes receiving services that 

slipped through, was there a way to go back and try to collect those.  City Manager Crossett felt 

that it depended on the circumstances.  Water and Sewer Superintendent Porrazzo advised that in 

the past when things had slipped through, it was the City’s fault and it was difficult to go back 

and collect.  There were deals made, in the process whoever was in charge, granted waivers 

because some properties had already been in the City paying taxes.  There were lots of things 

OK’d over time by past Councils as well.  Commissioner Campbell inquired if they were all 

documented.  He recalled they’d been passed before with documentation.  Superintendent 

Porrazzo advised that when impact fees were implemented a review committee was formed and 

it made things more complicated and there was no rule for everybody like it was prior.  

Commissioner Preston commented that was one of the challenges to make it consistent.  City 

Manager Crossett advised that when impact fees were started in 2007 there had been a surge in 

development, since there had been a real drop.  It was a good opportunity to sort out how they 

wanted it to work.   

 

Rory Horning inquired about the status of the Chief of Police search.  City Manager Crossett 

advised there was a review committee being formed and the job would be advertised in house 

first, with interviews planned prior to Thanksgiving.  John Stevens was the Acting Chief of 

Police.  They were putting together the review committee to get some good citizen participation 

in the process.  Rory Horning asked who was on the committee.   City Manager Crossett advised 

that it was not completely formulated, but once it was it would be public information.  Rory 

Horning commented that the City Manager hadn’t started at all yet.  City Manager Crossett 

replied that was not what he said; he had said it would be public when it was finalized.  Rory 

Horning asked so he hadn’t started yet.  City Manager Crossett replied that was not what he said.  

Commissioner Duford inquired if the Police Commission would be part of the committee.  City 

Manager Crossett advised that it would.  Mayor DeVries advised that the City Manager was the 

person responsible for the hiring of the Police Chief and he had mentioned before that the Police 

Commission would be part of the committee and would be advertised in house first.   

 

FINAL APPROVAL – VICWOOD 12 LOT SUBDIVISION:  Planning Official Weaver 

advised that the request was for the final approval of the 12 lot subdivision, it had been approved 

by the Commission in its preliminary state.  She noted that all applicable department heads had 

signed off on the approval and had no issues yet to be resolved; all conditions of approval had 

been met.  Dennis Duty advised that he had no further comments, unless there were questions, 

every condition was addressed in the letter.  Commissioner Lies disagreed and commented that 

the mosquito pond was not taken care of and he would not vote for it until it was taken care of.  

He questioned how a concrete pond with a hole drilled in and cemented was expected to 

percolate.  Dennis Duty asked if he was being serious.  Commissioner Lies responded that he 

was serious.  Dennis Duty commented that he had talked to Commissioner Lies last summer and 

there were no mosquito issues when they talked after he had brought an engineer to look at the 

pond.  It was not suppose to percolate, there was a drain system and they had put in a two year 



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 5 
 

mosquito abatement.  Commissioner Lies advised that there wasn’t at that time, however two 

weeks later they were worse than ever.  Dennis Duty advised that the engineer doesn’t want to 

drill a hole because that’s how DEQ had approved it.  Commissioner Lies commented that if you 

have a cylinder filled with water it would become stagnant.  Dennis Duty advised that only two 

feet of it had water and that’s how DEQ and the City had approved it originally.  Commissioner 

Lies commented that maybe it was approved, but it did not work because it was within two feet 

of the top most of the summer and now had gradually receded to three or four.  Dennis Duty 

commented that it had not been like that when he’d went there several times throughout the 

summer with the engineer, but they would look at other ways they could reduce the mosquito 

issue.  He advised that he could not change the design of it without the engineer’s OK or they 

had a more serious problem.  Commissioner Lies said it was a serious issue, they’d never had 

mosquitoes like that before and it was ridiculous to put up with something you don’t have to.  

Dennis Duty advised they would look into other ways.  He commented that there was 10’ 

easement on the side of the property; he had measured the distance from the guide wires which 

were 14’ from the property line.  Dennis Duty advised that was an issue with the power 

company.  Commissioner Lies pointed out they had their house scheduled to be built right over it 

on lot 11.  He didn’t know what the distance was because there were none given.  Commissioner 

Duford commented that the map showed the easement along the side showed 5’ but was 

supposed to be 10’ on each side of the pole.  Dennis Duty advised that he would look at the 

easement, but this was how it was previously approved.  Commissioner Duford commented that 

she’d brought this up with Mission Valley Power’s guidelines that were required.  Dennis Duty 

explained that the map shows what exists today, if there was a guide wire outside of the 

easement it was the power company’s problem.  Commissioner Lies commented that he’d looked 

at his property and there was a 10’ easement on either side.  For overhead lines there was a total 

of 20’.  Dennis Duty advised that they would look back at the easements, but what the surveyors 

have now is 5’ on each side.  Commissioner Campbell commented that there were two maps of 

the setback limits, the west wall of the house was on the setback before, but the newest map 

showed the houses turned so only the corner was on it.  He inquired if there was a reason for the 

angles of lots 11 and 12 being changed.  Dennis Duty commented that it was to make the 

setbacks less tight.  Commissioner Duford noted the new map showed the corner of the house at 

10’ and that would make them lose part of the house or porch.  Dennis Duty advised that they 

still had room to move to the east within the setbacks on the other side.  He would go back and 

review the easement, which was of record, before construction.  Commissioner Duford inquired 

about the runoff system.  She noted that one map showed a domestic well above the common 

area, an isolation protection zone for an adjacent well.  Wellheads required 100’.  Superintendent 

Porrazzo noted that was for municipal wells.  Commissioner Campbell noted they showed both 

radii of 100’ and 50’.  He inquired if the property owners with the well were also on City water.  

Commissioner Lies replied that it was not.  Superintendent Porrazzo inquired which house it 

was.  Commissioner Lies advised the house to the west of his on the corner.  Commissioner 

Campbell inquired if was maybe the golf course well, since the circles were going to the east.  

He didn’t feel it was Commissioner Lies neighbors’ wells.  Commissioner Campbell advised that 

they relied on DEQ, and it was approved through them.  Commissioner Campbell noted the map 

showed a 50’ and 100’ isolation zones going through two homes.  He recalled that all of the 

neighbors in that area had access to City water, the only well he could think of in that area was 

the golf course well.  He advised that the important thing was that there were no drain fields in 

the isolation zone, and they would all be hooked to sewer and have stormwater utilities. 



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 6 
 

Commissioner Preston inquired what they were basing their approval on if it was approved by 

DEQ, what where they there to determine.  Commissioner Campbell advised that it was to ensure 

the conditions were met.  City Manager Crossett agreed that they must determine if the 

conditions agreed upon in preliminary plat were completed for final plat.  Mayor DeVries 

commented that she wasn’t sure what to do with the drainage situation causing mosquito 

problems and if they had any authority.  Commissioner Duford commented that there was a 

difference between the engineer and what Commissioner Lies claimed was not working.  She 

wondered if the engineer had all of the information needed.  She inquired about the snow 

removal and if it would be placed in the common area.  Dennis Duty advised that was one place 

and there was also a spot at the end where it could be pushed to, but primarily the common area.  

Commissioner Duford wondered if the contaminates from vehicles in the snow would get piled 

up and would the runoff as it melted and affect wells or something else, like the canal which had 

been a concern near her home for that reason.  Dennis Duty advised that was the same issue in all 

of the snow, anywhere that snow was moved to on grassy areas.  There was not a lot of residual, 

but that was the purpose of the stormwater system which would pick up the majority.  

Commissioner Duford inquired if that was maintained by the HOA.  Dennis Duty advised that it 

was.  Commissioner Campbell inquired if they could put a condition on the approval.  His only 

concern was easement, though that was technically Mission Valley Power’s issue.  Dennis Duty 

advised that they could not build a house on an easement of record.  City Manager Crossett 

advised that they could not add conditions.    Commissioner Duford commented that when it 

came up the first time in 2008 for final plat, they hadn’t met the conditions and it wasn’t 

approved because conditions were not met.  She did not know how they could approve it if 

conditions were not met.  Dennis Duty advised that they needed to vote on the conditions given 

during preliminary plat.  He noted that each of the conditions listed had been approved by City 

staff.  Planning Official Weaver noted that Commission should note which conditions were not 

complete in the motion.  Commissioner Duford inquired if they needed to find the number.  

Planning Official Weaver advised that they should and needed to let the developer know what 

was not met.  Commissioner Duford commented that she was concerned about the issue 

concerning the power lines.  Planning Official Weaver inquired if it was condition 7 or 14.  

Commissioner Duford noted that electric service was noted in condition 14.  Dennis Duty 

advised that it was all in place.  Commissioner Duford advised that she meant the issue with 

power lines and Mission Valley Power.  Commissioner Lies commented as far as he was 

concerned condition 33, dealing with the runoff and pond, was not properly done.  He didn’t care 

what DEQ said, they weren’t given all the facts.  Mayor DeVries noted that condition 33 stated 

that they must submit the application to DEQ along with any written comments from the public 

concerning water, sewer and sanitation up to 30 days.  Dennis Duty advised that they had 

submitted those to DEQ.  Commissioner Lies commented that he thought DEQ had screwed up 

as did the engineer.  Planning Official Weaver noted that in the package his drawing was 

stamped and dated from DEQ and his certificate was also included.  Commissioner Campbell 

moved to give final approval to the 12 lot Vicwood subdivision, seconded by Commissioner 

Funke.  Cheryl Wolfe commented that she didn’t know a lot about permits and impact fees, but 

she wanted to know if those payments were part of a condition of approval and who was 

responsible for making sure they were paid and have they been paid and who was responsible for 

signing off on that.  Planning Official Weaver advised that there were several department heads, 

the planning department has a fee for final approval, which was paid.  The building department 

had a fee when each lot was to undergo building, through the Building Inspector as would the 



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 7 
 

impact fees.  City Manager Crossett noted that there was an impact fee review committee that 

would review and make a recommendation for any waiver of impact fees that were petitioned.  

The Building Inspector was responsible to make sure that Impact and any other applicable fees 

were paid.  Planning Official Weaver advised that any extension of utility services was approved 

by the Water and Sewer Superintendent.  Mayor DeVries noted that all fees due on the Vicwood 

subdivision was paid, and any building fees would be due at the time of building.  City Manager 

Crossett noted that this is something they’ve tighten up at the City have the Building Inspector 

ensure they were paid prior to approval or permits.  Cheryl Wolfe commented that she was 

wondering after what she had heard tonight if any other deals made or negotiations had been 

made and would the Commission know.  Mayor DeVries advised that her understanding was that 

all fees on this subdivision were paid.  City Manager Crossett advised that he thought Ms. Wolfe 

was taking issue with was something that didn’t have to do with this specific item, but the City 

holding onto a cashier’s check given to the City by Mission Valley Aquatic so that they could 

begin their project, but at the same time petitioning for the waiver of those fees.  He commented 

that they could have a discussion on that issue, but it had no bearing on the Vicwood subdivision 

and Mr. Duty was not requesting forgiveness on any of the fees involved.  Dennis Duty advised 

that he was not, and the impact fees were paid in full.  The building permits would be paid when 

the individual lots were to be built on.  Commissioner Campbell commented that a lot of 

confusion was coming from what was the developer’s and homeowner’s responsibilities, some of 

the fees come later.  Commissioner Duford commented that she couldn’t find a condition number 

associated with the concern she had, though page 5 had a reference to the easements.  She felt 

these things needed to be readjusted so that it was clear and things would be taken care of 

including that house that would need moved that was on the easement.  Dennis Duty advised that 

was if it was on the easement.  Commissioner Preston asked how could they approve it if he 

needed to look into some things, she wasn’t sure if they should pass it if there were issues that 

needed addressed.  Dennis Duty advised that the condition Commissioner Duford mentioned was 

one to ensure that power was in place at the site, it did not talk to easements.  The power was all 

in place.  The easement shown on the map was the easement of record put there by the surveyor.  

Commissioner Campbell noted that the power company would not let that stuff slide, and it was 

an issue between the property owner and the power company, not the City.  Commissioner Lies 

agreed that it was an issue that needed addressed by the developer and the power company.  

Dennis Duty advised the title company was not showing any issue with that easement, it was not 

a condition of the approval by the City.  They would take it into consideration and look into the 

easement and see what was of record.  Planning Official Weaver advised that the Polson 

Development Code says that no building shall be constructed on an easement, so even if it was 

not in the conditions, it was still part of the PDC.  They would not be able to build on an 

easement.  Commissioner Preston inquired if they could approve a lot where no building could 

be built.  Dennis Duty advised that they were talking about a potential 5’ variation.  The surveyor 

and title company have both shown that they are not infringing on the easement, however if it is 

shown that they are they would make the adjustment to any easements of record.  Commissioner 

Campbell advised that the power company often puts there guide wires outside their easements.  

Commissioner Duford commented that she just wanted to bring it to their attention and she had 

confirmed those widths with Mission Valley Power.  Mayor DeVries advised that if it was 

recorded wrong it was the Power Companies responsibility to ensure the easement is correct.  

Commissioner Duford expressed that she couldn’t go there, she could only give the information.  

The motion for Vicwood’s final approval carried 5-2, with Commissioners Funke, Preston, 



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 8 
 

Campbell, Erickson and Mayor Devries in favor.  Commissioners Duford and Lies 

opposed.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANT INTEREST TO THE PUBLIC 

NOT ON THE AGENDA:  Mayor DeVries noted that the election office was open until 8:00 

p.m. the following day to turn in ballots.   

 

Peter Daniels commented that the failure to record the entire meeting may be a once in a lifetime 

thing, but for a small fee they could buy a battery meter or use new batteries for every meeting or 

a secondary recording machine.  He commented that it should be someone’s responsibility to 

ensure there were fully charged batteries.  

 

Rory Horning commented that at the risk of sounding accusatory, because they had a staff 

member who was not forthcoming with public information, he was going to say that they were 

now coming to the realization that the golf course restaurant was on a semi-break even situation.  

When they had the contractors there they were beaten and kicked on how to operate and they 

were trying to tell the Commission that they weren’t making any money.  The City taking it over 

wasn’t any better.  He commented that they shouldn’t be so hardnosed about public information, 

they should be a community again and apologize to the people who tried to make it there.   

 

Mike McCloud commented that he wanted to ensure for the residents of View Point Drive, that it 

was considered a private drive.  City Manager Crossett asked for his contact information to look 

into the issue.  He expressed that the residents of View Point Drive were concerned about 

comments made by Mr. Duncan at the previous meeting that View Point Drive was considered 

an access to the mansion.  The residents of that drive were united against that.  Commissioner 

Preston inquired if it was the road originally used during the construction of the mansion.  Mike 

McCloud advised that it was, the previous owner had used it but never contributed to the 

maintenance.  The current owner, Mike Maddy, used the road but also never contributed and 

chose to opt out of the HOA.  There was a gate on the road now, for which the homeowners’ had 

the combination.  Commissioner Duford inquired how many were part of the HOA.  Mike 

McCloud advised part of the condition when you buy was to belong to the HOA with covenants.  

There were three completed homes and one planned.  He advised that the road was a private 

drive and it was posted as such.  Commissioner Duford commented that there had been 

discussion it the past, but it was unclear with the information given to the Commission.  Mike 

McCloud advised that it was originally a cul-de-sac, the traffic got so bad the gate was moved to 

block access to the mansion and passed the Hovencotter property, anything past where the 

original cul-de-sac should have been.  They had been given permission by the County to post a 

15 mile an hour and private drive sign, only the first 50’ were public.  Commissioner Preston 

asked how the mansion ever got to use the road.  Mike McCloud advised that they just did.  They 

had approached Mr. Maddy to help with the road maintenance, they were down to rock and base 

now and it had originally been constructed to County standards, but he had informed them that 

he’d opted himself out of the HOA, which normally requires a meeting of the residence.  Steve 

Morton advised that was when they constructed the pave drive connecting to Southlake Crest.  

Commissioner Preston commented that now it was the other group’s problem, and not theirs.    

Steve Morton inquired if there’d been any action by any parties about the discussion from the 

previous meeting involving the Duncans and the commercial use of the mansion property.  



CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES NOVEMBER 7, 2011 9 
 

Mayor DeVries advised there had been none, and they were hoping to have anything that 

involves the City reported back at the next Commission meeting.  Steve Morton commented that 

the only access to that mansion aside from Southlake Crest was View Point Drive.  He added 

their concern was that even if the City and County post private drive signs, it would become an 

immediate thoroughfare if the gate was left open, but the road should only be used for 

emergency services.  Commissioner Preston questioned if the mansion had no legitimate access.   

 

Cheryl Wolfe commented that her questions earlier were not about the Mission Valley Aquatics, 

she had specific questions about the Vicwood subdivision final plat conditions.   

 

Commissioner Duford asked for clarification of the City Manager review time and date. City 

Manager Crossett advised that it would be on the next Commission meeting.   

 

Commissioner Preston commented that she was disappointed that she had submitted on October 

25
th

 three items for the agenda this evening and none had been placed on the agenda, and the one 

item on the agenda was submitted on the 28
th

.  She commented that 2 were in reference to the 

Ridgewater and she could understand why they would take some time to put together, but the 

third was to place a whistle blower policy in the personnel policy.  She felt that it wouldn’t take 

that much time to get together and you wouldn’t necessarily need the wording of the policy.  

Instead they had a short agenda, and she was afraid there would be a long agenda right before 

Thanksgiving when she knew the planning official would be gone, along with others, and they 

would be unable to ask question.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mayor Pat DeVries     

____________________________________ 

Attest:  Kala Parker, City Clerk 


